(530) 895-4711 ‘ ARD 545 Vallombrosa Ave
chicorec.com Chico, CA 95926

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, August 28, 2025 — 4:00 P.M.

If you need an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please call (530) 895-4711
Agenda posted prior to 4:00 PM Monday, August 25, 2025

BOARD MEMBERS CARD STAFF

Tom Lando, Chair Annabel Grimm, General Manager

Dave Donnan, Vice Chair Phil Aviles, Finance and Human Resources Director
Michael McGinnis Holli Drobny, Administrative Director

Christopher Norden Erin Morrissey, Recreation Director

Jason Roye Scott Schumann, Parks and Facilities Director
LEGAL COUNSEL

Jackson Glick, Sac Valley Law

AGENDA
Zoom Meeting Information:
https://card.zoom.us/j/81607636750?pwd=RTNNUkKZPYi9ySGNsNVQ30Xh0U1hoZz09
Meeting ID: 816 0763 6750
Passcode: 156857

1. CALL TO ORDER
Roll Call

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public may address the Committee at this time on any matter not already listed on the Agenda,
with comments being limited to three minutes. The Committee cannot take any action at this meeting on
requests made under this section of the agenda.

3. CONSENT AGENDA
3.1. Minutes of the Reqular Meeting of the Board of Directors on July 24, 2026 - Action
Requested: Approve meeting minutes.

3.2. July Monthly Financial Report (Staff Report FI-25-022) - Action Requested: Approve the
monthly financials as recommended by the Finance Committee.

3.3. Consideration of Service Agreement for Social Media Support Services (Staff Report Fl-
25-023) - Action Requested: Authorize the District Manager to enter into a service
agreement with Blue Flamingo for marketing, communications, and social media support
services in an amount not to exceed $90,000 annually.

To expand the District's online presence and improve engagement with the community,

1|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711


https://card.zoom.us/j/81607636750?pwd=R1NNUkZPYi9ySGNsNVQ3OXh0U1hoZz09

August 28, 2025

3.4.

staff recommend contracting with a professional service provider for dedicated
marketing support.

District Irrigation Replacement Award (Staff Report 25-FI-024) - Action Requested:
Award the contract for the District Irrigation Replacement Project to Dawson Landscaping
in the amount of $555,000 and authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary
documents to proceed with the project.

The District maintains irrigation systems at multiple parks and facilities to support
healthy turf, landscaping, and recreational spaces. Several systems have reached the
end of their useful life, resulting in inefficiencies, water waste, and increased
maintenance costs.

4. REGULAR AGENDA

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Committee Report Out — Information provided/possible action
4.1.1. Finance Committee

Use and Rental of District Facilities Policy (Staff Report 25-048) - Action Requested:
Approve the updated Use and Rental of District Facilities Policy to establish consistent
guidelines for the public use of District facilities.

To ensure equitable access, protect District assets, and align facility usage with the
District’s mission, staff have prepared an updated policy # 2270 — Use and Rental of
District Facilities.

Injury and Iliness Prevention Plan (IIPP) (Staff Report 25-049) - Action Requested:
Approve the updated Injury and Illness Prevention Plan (IIPP) to ensure compliance with
California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) requirements and
enhance workplace safety for Chico Area Recreation and Park District employees.

The IIPP is a written workplace safety program required for all California employers
under Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 3203. The IIPP outlines the
District's responsibilities and procedures for preventing workplace injuries and illnesses.

Consideration of Memorial Bench Requests (Staff Report 25-050) - Action Requested:
Approve the placement of memorial benches as recommended by the Facility Committee
and in accordance with the District’s Policy # 2215 — Donations and Gifts.

The District has received memorial bench requests from community members wishing
to honor loved ones through placement in District parks. Each request was reviewed by
staff for compliance with design, location, and policy requirements, and then reviewed
at the July 11t, 2025, Facility Committee Meeting.

2|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



August 28, 2025

5.

4.5. Authorization to Execute Documents Related Esplanade Project Right-of-Way Transfer
(Staff Report 25-051 & Resolution 25-014) — Action Requested: Adopt a Resolution
authorizing the District Manager, or designee, to execute all documents necessary to
complete Escrow No. 7085833 for the transfer of right-of-way property associated with
the Esplanade Project to the City of Chico.

As part of the North Esplanade Project, the Chico Area Recreation and Park District is
required to transfer a portion of property to the City of Chico to complete right-of-way
adjustments. This transfer is being facilitated through Escrow No. 7085833.

4.6. Henshaw Neighborhood Park Design Concept (Staff Report 25-052) — Action Requested:
Accept the design concept for Henshaw Neighborhood Park as presented, and direct staff
to proceed with design development consistent with Board and community input.

District staff, in collaboration with Confluence Inc., have developed a design concept for
the park based on extensive community input.

4.7. ltems Removed from the Consent Agenda

NEW BUSINESS

There is no new business.

6.

9.

DIRECTOR COMMENTS
Opportunity for the Board to comment on items not listed on the agenda.

STAFF COMMENTS

Opportunity for District Staff to comment on items not listed on the agenda.
Recreation Update (Staff Report 25-053)
Parks and Facilities Update (Staff Report 25-054)
General Manager Update (Staff Report 25-055)

ADJOURNMENT
Adjourn to the next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico Area Recreation and

Park District.

CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d): Anticipated Litigation

3|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



(530) 895-4711 ‘ ARD 545 Vallombrosa Ave
chicorec.com Chico, CA 95926

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, July 24, 2025, — 4:00 P.M.

DRAFT

Board Members Present: Tom Lando, Chair
Dave Donnan, Vice Chair
Michael McGinnis, Board Member
Christopher Norden, Board Member
Jason Roye, Board Member

Board Members Absent:
Staff Members Present: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

Phil Aviles, Finance Manager

Holli Drobny, Administrative Director

Erin Morrissey, Recreation Director

Scott Schumann, Parks and Facilities Director
Legal Counsel Present: Jackson Glick, Attorney at Law

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 4:00, and a roll call was taken, as noted above.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Correspondence was received from Ted Sullivan relating to reserving pickle ball courts. There is
no formal policy, only an internal protocol. Mr. Sullivan encouraged the Board to consider
having a formal policy that dictates the priority order for those who obtain rentals.

3. CONSENT AGENDA
3.1. Minutes of the Reqular Meeting of the Board of Directors on June 26, 2025
3.2. June Monthly Financial Report (Staff Report FI-25-020)

M/S/C/ (Directors McGinnis/Norden) Board of Directors approved the consent agenda.
The motion was unanimously approved.

4. REGULAR AGENDA
4.1. Committee Report Out — Information Provided
4.1.1. Finance Committee
4.1.2. Facility Committee Summary was provided. Director Lando requested to see the
new office space layout ahead of time, prior to a regular meeting.

4.2. Public Hearing of Continuation of Landscape and Lighting Assessment Districts (Staff
Report FI-25-019 & Resolution 25-010)

1|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



July 24, 2025

Resolution 25-010 approves engineer’s reports, confirms diagram and assessment, and orders
the continuation of the levy of assessment for Fiscal Year 2025-26 for the Oak Way, Amber
Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No. LLD 001-05)
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts. A public hearing was opened at the last regular
meeting on June 26", 2025. The public hearing was closed following no public comment
M/S/C/ (Directors Norden/Donnan) Board of Directors adopted Resolution 25-010 ordering
the continuation of the levy of assessment for Fiscal Year 2025-26 for the Oak Way, Amber
Grove/Greenfield, and Baroni Neighborhood Park and Open Space (No. LLD 001-05)
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts.

The motion was unanimously approved.

4.3. Policy Review (Staff Report FI-25-044)

District staff have conducted a routine review of existing policies to ensure compliance with
current regulations, best practices, and operational needs. As a result, updates were being
recommended to the following policies:

e 2225 - Capital Asset and Project Policy

e 2415 - Social Media Policy
M/S/C/ (Directors Roye/Donnan) Board of Directors approved the updated policies 2225 -
Capital Asset and Project Policy and 2155 — Social Media Use Policy.
The motion was unanimously approved.

5. NEW BUSINESS

5.1. Consideration of Temporary Inclusion Coordinator Position Outside of FY 2025-2026

Budget (Staff Report 25-044)

To support Chico Unified School District’s expansion of the After School Program through
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP) funding, District staff is requesting an
addition of a temporary Inclusion Coordinator position.
M/S/C/ (Directors McGinnis/Norden) Board of Directors approved the addition of the
Recreation Coordinator for the Inclusion Program.
The motion was unanimously approved.

6. DIRECTORS' COMMENTS

Director Donnan made a comment related to misinformation on social media and the public's
perception that the District is the City.

Director Lando discussed the process for taking on additional City parks. Jackson Glick, Legal,
suggested a Board subcommittee to recommend policies for accepting City parks. General
Manager Grimm shared negotiations are ongoing between the District and the City related to
the operating and maintenance budget of the additional properties. Lando suggested that the
Finance or Facility Committee be the subcommittee dedicated to this topic. Lando requested this
topic be on a future agenda.

2|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



July 24, 2025

Director Donnan inquired about the cadence of the flag burial at the Veteran's Memorial Park.
7. STAFF COMMENTS
8. ADJOURNMENT

Adjourned at 4:30PM to the next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico Area
Recreation and Park District.

3|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



Staff Report FI-25-022
Finance Agenda Item C

CARD Regular Agenda Item 3.2
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 28, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Phil Aviles, Finance Manager

SUBJECT: Monthly Financials — July

Overview

July 1°* marks the beginning of our new fiscal year. In the district, we typically front-load many
expenses, including several equipment purchases, making the expense ratio look a bit out of
balance. This was anticipated and not a surprise to management. Board-approved Capital
Projects for Fiscal Year 2025/2026 have not yet been entered into the District's ERP software and
thus are not included in the July 2025 financial statements. The status of these Capital Projects is
expected to be reflected in the August 2025 financial statements.

July represents 8.33% of the annual budget.

Budget Analysis
Revenue: July revenue came in a bit short of target largely because taxes represent nearly half
the budget and we did not collect any tax revenue in July. This is typical for this month.

- Operating Income: Operating income came in right above target at 8.89%

Expenses: Expenses reported at 14.08% of budget largely driven by supplies & services
including some large equipment purchases for the year along with repairs & maintenance being
elevated due to the time of year.

e Salaries & Wages reported just under budget at 7.43%.

» Supplies & Services reported a bit above budget at 26.07% as explained.

e Employee Benefits are over budget at 26.84% due to a front-loaded payment to
Workers' Compensation which happens in July each year. This will level out over the
course of the year.

e Repairs & Maintenance ended the month at 12.70% which is common this time of year
largely due to landscape and irrigation wear and tear in the summer months.

Program Income: Program income reported at 17.93% to budget largely driven by summer
camp season and summer sports programs.
- Rentals: Facility rental revenue reports slightly under target at 3.66%, which is typical
during this time of year due to summer heat.

1|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



BOARD OF DIRECTORS STAFF REPORT

« Summer Camps: Camp programs are ahead of revenue budget as expected, reporting
at 43.20%.

» Youth & Adult Sports: Revenue reported at 13.50% to budget from summer
programming.

Assessment Districts: The Assessment District revenue is recorded quarterly when received
from the county. No revenue was recorded for July.

Impact Fees: City Impact Fees are expected to pay out the next installment in September and
County fees reported to be 6.33% of the annual budget.

2|Page



Class

Fund: 90 - General Fund
Revenue
50 - Taxes
53 - Operating Income
55 - Other Income

Revenue Total:

Expense
60 - Salaries & Wages
61 - Employee Benefits
62 - Supplies & Services
63 - Repairs & Maintenance
64 - Utilities
65 - Contracts
69 - Other Expenses

Expense Total:
Fund: 90 - General Fund Surplus (Deficit):

Report Surplus (Deficit):

Chico Area Recreation and Park District

General Fund Budget to Actuals

For Fiscal: FY 2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Used
7,400,000.00 7,400,000.00 0.00 0.00  -7,400,000.00 0.00%
7,420,012.00 7,420,012.00 659,432.10 659,432.10 -6,760,579.90 8.89%
58,530.00 58,530.00 665.54 665.54 -57,864.46 1.14%
14,878,542.00 14,878,542.00 660,097.64 660,097.64 -14,218,444.36 4.44%
8,103,452.00 8,103,452.00 602,004.46 602,004.46 7,501,447.54 7.43%
2,458,549.00 2,458,549.00 659,850.05 659,850.05 1,798,698.95 26.84%
2,425,768.50 2,425,768.50 632,355.10 632,355.10 1,793,413.40  26.07%
242,325.00 242,325.00 30,763.19 30,763.19 211,561.81 12.70%
893,404.80 893,404.80 101,654.71 101,654.71 791,750.09 11.38%
706,200.00 706,200.00 64,614.92 64,614.92 641,585.08 9.15%
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00%
14,849,699.30 14,849,699.30 2,091,242.43 2,091,242.43 12,758,456.87 14.08%
28,842.70 28,842.70  -1,431,144.79  -1,431,144.79  -1,459,987.49 -4,961.90%
28,842.70 28,842.70  -1,431,144.79  -1,431,144.79  -1,459,987.49 -4,961.90%

8/22/2025 3:06:25 PM

Page 1



Account Type

Program: 11610 - Facility Rentals
Revenue
Expense

Program: 11610 - Facility Rentals Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 11611 - Picnic Rentals
Revenue

Program: 11611 - Picnic Rentals Total:

Program: 11612 - Field Rentals
Revenue
Expense

Program: 11612 - Field Rentals Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 11710 - Special Events
Revenue
Expense

Program: 11710 - Special Events Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22200 - Contracted Camp
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22200 - Contracted Camp Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22210 - Camp Chi-Da-CA
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22210 - Camp Chi-Da-CA Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22220 - Delight Camps
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22220 - Delight Camps Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22240 - Camp Chico Creek
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22240 - Camp Chico Creek Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22310 - Youth Sports
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22310 - Youth Sports Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22320 - Adult Sports
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22320 - Adult Sports Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22330 - DFJ Admin
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22330 - DFJ Admin Surplus (Deficit):

Program: 22400 - Contract Programs
Revenue
Expense

Program: 22400 - Contract Programs Surplus (Deficit):

Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Program Revenue & Expense

For Fiscal: FY 2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Used
360,000.00 360,000.00 13,178.00 13,178.00 -346,822.00 3.66%
351,351.00 351,351.00 26,523.35 26,523.35 324,827.65 7.55%
8,649.00 8,649.00 -13,345.35 -13,345.35 -21,994.35 -154.30%
60,000.00 60,000.00 3,675.00 3,675.00 -56,325.00 6.13%
60,000.00 60,000.00 3,675.00 3,675.00 -56,325.00 6.13%
100,000.00 100,000.00 5,792.50 5,792.50 -94,207.50 5.79%
5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00%
95,000.00 95,000.00 5,792.50 5,792.50 -89,207.50 6.10%
208,000.00 208,000.00 40.00 40.00 -207,960.00 0.02%
101,923.00 101,923.00 14,542.94 14,542.94 87,380.06 14.27%
106,077.00 106,077.00 -14,502.94 -14,502.94 -120,579.94  -13.67%
210,000.00 210,000.00 126,063.85 126,063.85 -83,936.15 60.03%
0.00 0.00 5,266.27 5,266.27 -5,266.27 0.00%
210,000.00 210,000.00 120,797.58 120,797.58 -89,202.42 57.52%
298,500.00 298,500.00 1,283.00 1,283.00 -297,217.00 0.43%
200,536.00 200,536.00 42,146.40 42,146.40 158,389.60 21.02%
97,964.00 97,964.00 -40,863.40 -40,863.40 -138,827.40 -41.71%
223,080.00 223,080.00 69,665.99 69,665.99 -153,414.01 31.23%
244,236.00 244,236.00 38,483.45 38,483.45 205,752.55 15.76%
-21,156.00 -21,156.00 31,182.54 31,182.54 52,338.54 -147.39%
236,160.00 236,160.00 191,535.49 191,535.49 -44,624.51 81.10%
223,542.00 223,542.00 42,211.39 42,211.39 181,330.61 18.88%
12,618.00 12,618.00 149,324.10 149,324.10 136,706.10 1,183.42%
417,771.10 417,771.10 69,677.33 69,677.33 -348,093.77 16.68%
500,317.00 500,317.00 49,152.22 49,152.22 451,164.78 9.82%
-82,545.90 -82,545.90 20,525.11 20,525.11 103,071.01  -24.87%
365,080.00 365,080.00 37,636.52 37,636.52 -327,443.48 10.31%
518,168.00 518,168.00 38,791.30 38,791.30 479,376.70 7.49%
-153,088.00 -153,088.00 -1,154.78 -1,154.78 151,933.22 0.75%
77,570.00 77,570.00 10,672.20 10,672.20 -66,897.80 13.76%
112,570.00 112,570.00 9,363.27 9,363.27 103,206.73 8.32%
-35,000.00 -35,000.00 1,308.93 1,308.93 36,308.93 -3.74%
217,828.00 217,828.00 26,952.13 26,952.13 -190,875.87 12.37%
348,254.00 348,254.00 90,660.27 90,660.27 257,593.73 26.03%
-130,426.00 -130,426.00 -63,708.14 -63,708.14 66,717.86 48.85%

8/22/2025 3:09:06 PM

Page 2



Budget Report

For Fiscal: FY 2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Account Type Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Used
Program: 22510 - Afterschool Program - CARD
Revenue 2,664,607.00 2,664,607.00 161.00 161.00 -2,664,446.00 0.01%
Expense 2,223,122.00 2,223,122.00 23,686.81 23,686.81 2,199,435.19 1.07%
Program: 22510 - Afterschool Program - CARD Surplus (Deficit): 441,485.00 441,485.00 -23,525.81 -23,525.81 -465,010.81 -5.33%
Program: 22600 - NC Admin
Revenue 230,238.00 230,238.00 1,287.57 1,287.57 -228,950.43 0.56%
Expense 254,727.00 254,727.00 21,674.17 21,674.17 233,052.83 8.51%
Program: 22600 - NC Admin Surplus (Deficit): -24,489.00 -24,489.00 -20,386.60 -20,386.60 4,102.40 83.25%
Program: 22610 - Trips
Revenue 1,328.00 1,328.00 0.00 0.00 -1,328.00 0.00%
Program: 22610 - Trips Total: 1,328.00 1,328.00 0.00 0.00 -1,328.00 0.00%
Program: 22630 - Nature ABC
Revenue 8,530.00 8,530.00 0.00 0.00 -8,530.00 0.00%
Expense 7,977.00 7,977.00 21.43 21.43 7,955.57 0.27%
Program: 22630 - Nature ABC Surplus (Deficit): 553.00 553.00 -21.43 -21.43 -574.43 -3.88%
Program: 22800 - Recreation Swim
Revenue 232,919.90 232,919.90 55,102.00 55,102.00 -177,817.90 23.66%
Expense 339,936.00 339,936.00 81,062.64 81,062.64 258,873.36 23.85%
Program: 22800 - Recreation Swim Surplus (Deficit): -107,016.10 -107,016.10 -25,960.64 -25,960.64 81,055.46 24.26%
Program: 22900 - Youth Leader
Revenue 36,000.00 36,000.00 300.00 300.00 -35,700.00 0.83%
Expense 420.00 420.00 0.00 0.00 420.00 0.00%
Program: 22900 - Youth Leader Surplus (Deficit): 35,580.00 35,580.00 300.00 300.00 -35,280.00 0.84%
Program: 22910 - Inclusion
Revenue 159,009.00 159,009.00 50.00 50.00 -158,959.00 0.03%
Expense 123,374.00 123,374.00 30,640.53 30,640.53 92,733.47 24.84%
Program: 22910 - Inclusion Surplus (Deficit): 35,635.00 35,635.00 -30,590.53 -30,590.53 -66,225.53  -85.84%
Report Surplus (Deficit): 551,168.00 551,168.00 98,846.14 98,846.14 -452,321.86 17.93%
8/22/2025 3:09:06 PM Page 3



Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Assessement District

Revenue & Expense
For Fiscal: FY 2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Account Type Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Used
Fund: 60 - Baroni Park
Revenue 142,155.00 142,155.00 0.00 0.00 -142,155.00 0.00%
Expense 137,155.00 137,155.00 10,208.30 10,208.30 126,946.70 7.44%
Fund: 60 - Baroni Park Surplus (Deficit): 5,000.00 5,000.00 -10,208.30 -10,208.30 -15,208.30 -204.17%
Fund: 63 - Indigo Park
Revenue 94,531.00 94,531.00 0.00 0.00 -94,531.00 0.00%
Expense 94,531.00 94,531.00 6,625.08 6,625.08 87,905.92 7.01%
Fund: 63 - Indigo Park Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 0.00 -6,625.08 -6,625.08 -6,625.08 0.00%
Fund: 65 - Oak Way Park
Revenue 182,190.00 182,190.00 0.00 0.00 -182,190.00 0.00%
Expense 182,190.00 182,190.00 8,304.83 8,304.83 173,885.17 4.56%
Fund: 65 - Oak Way Park Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 0.00 -8,304.83 -8,304.83 -8,304.83 0.00%
Fund: 67 - Peterson Park (Amber Grove)
Revenue 158,229.00 158,229.00 0.00 0.00 -158,229.00 0.00%
Expense 158,229.00 158,229.00 12,198.98 12,198.98 146,030.02 7.71%
Fund: 67 - Peterson Park (Amber Grove) Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 0.00 -12,198.98 -12,198.98 -12,198.98 0.00%
Report Surplus (Deficit): 5,000.00 5,000.00 -37,337.19 -37,337.19 -42,337.19 -746.74%
8/22/2025 3:11:30 PM Page 4



Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Impact Fee Activity

For Fiscal: FY 2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Account Type Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Used
Fund: 70 - City Impact Fees (Community Park)
Revenue 1,360,000.00 1,360,000.00 0.00 0.00  -1,360,000.00 0.00%
Fund: 70 - City Impact Fees (Community Park) Total: 1,360,000.00 1,360,000.00 0.00 0.00 -1,360,000.00 0.00%
Fund: 80 - County Impact Fees
Revenue 75,000.00 75,000.00 4,750.00 4,750.00 -70,250.00 6.33%
Fund: 80 - County Impact Fees Total: 75,000.00 75,000.00 4,750.00 4,750.00 -70,250.00 6.33%
Report Total: 1,435,000.00 1,435,000.00 4,750.00 4,750.00 -1,430,250.00 0.33%
8/22/2025 3:13:42 PM Page 5



Account
Fund: 90 - General Fund
Assets

90-1016

90-1021

90-1210

90-1212

90-1215

90-1220

90-1225

90-1230

90-1235

90-1240

90-1250

90-1270

90-1310

90-1340

90-1360

Liability
90-2004
90-2006
90-2010
90-2014
90-2015
90-2016
90-2018
90-2020
90-2022
90-2024
90-2026
90-2030
90-2031
90-2032
90-2036
90-2038
90-2040
90-2042
90-2044
90-2046
90-2048
90-2052
90-2054
90-2056
90-2058
90-2060
90-2062
90-2066
90-2070
90-2099

Equity
90-3010
90-3020

Name

Petty Cash

Claim On Cash - General

Land

Land Improvements
Leasehold Improvements

Chico Area Recreation and Park District

Buildings and Components
Building Improvements & Renovations

Construction in Progress

Equipment
Vehicles

Technology Hardware

Accumulated Depreciation

Accounts Receivable

Suspense

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets:

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Accounts Payable
Vouchers Payable

Accrued Wages and Salaries Payable

Payroll Corrections

Compensated Absences Payable
457 Employee Contribution
457 ROTH Employee Contribution

CalPERS - Employee
CalPERS - Employer
Federal Withholding

Garnishments
HSA

Medical Insurance - Employee

Medicare and Social Security - Employee
Medicare and Social Security - Employer
State Withholding

SDI

Union Dues - Parks Staff
Union Dues - Supervisor

Voluntary Life/AD&D - Employee

Deferred Revenue
Due To Other Funds

Other Liability - Class Clearing Acct

Net Pension Liability

Time Expired Holding Acct
Prepaid Facilities Transfer

Security Deposits
Sales Tax
Due To- General

Total Liability:

Fund Balance - NonSpendable

Fund Balance - Restricted

Balance

800.00
12,860,817.95
17,450,722.52
30,521,143.51

2,096,189.67
123,423.67
39,671.05
9,134,127.62
1,332,467.32
789,089.75
296,192.00
-18,397,846.75
410,528.96
-64,351.23

2,033,810.00

58,626,786.04

32,247.00
271,979.01
138,646.93
115,789.38

-1,931.31
492,299.50

4,168.60
2,325.00

45,444.44

23,435.00

96,495.77

2,797.35
-14,194.50
2,755.02
111,877.15
27,924.09
73,049.27
9,507.64
-537.56
494.81
2,643.59
744,395.77
4,652,631.00
-46,772.75
3,483,557.00
8,298.11

-1,091.00
105,538.77

301.74
547,974.20

10,932,049.02

35,555,915.76
2,500,000.00

58,626,786.04

General Fund

Balance Report
As Of 07/31/2025

8/22/2025 3:22:25 PM

Page 6



Balance Sheet As 0f 07/31/2025

Account Name Balance
90-3050 Fund Balance - Unassigned 11,072,732.80

Total Beginning Equity: 49,128,648.56
Total Revenue 660,097.64
Total Expense 2,094,009.18
Revenues Over/Under Expenses -1,433,911.54

Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 47,694,737.02

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 58,626,786.04

8/22/2025 3:22:25 PM Page 7



Balance Sheet

Account
Fund: 99 - POOLED CASH
Assets

99-1010

99-1011

99-1012

99-1014

99-1018

99-1382

99-1384

99-1386

Liability
99-2006
99-2007
99-2054

Name

Cash In Bank - US Bank Treasurer
Cash In Bank - Golden Valley Bank
Cash In Bank - California Class Investment
Cash In Bank - GVB Investment Account
Cash In Bank - Tri Counties Investment Ac
Due From Other Funds-Indigo
Due From Other Funds-General
Due From Other Funds-Peterson

Total Assets:

Accounts Payable (Pooled Cash)

Wages Payable

Due To Other Funds (Pooled Cash)
Total Liability:

Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):

Balance

4,985,309.88
859,415.30
2,790,148.12
10,049,454.29
1,185,294.68
50.35
547,974.20
298.04

20,417,944.86

548,322.59
205,617.61

19,664,004.66

20,417,944.86

0.00

20,417,944.86

20,417,944.86

As Of 07/31/2025

8/22/2025 3:22:25 PM

Page 8



Fund Balance Report
Chico Area Recreation and Park District Account Summary
As Of 07/31/2025

90 - General Fund 60 - Baroni Park 63 - Indigo Park 65 - Oak Way 67 - Peterson 70 - City Impact 80 - County
Object Park Park (Amber Fees Impact Fees Total
Grove) (Community
Asset
Asset
1016 - Petty Cash 800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
1021 - CLAIM ON CASH 12,860,817.95 59,749.16 17,502.92 -7,794.01 28,197.93 6,153,510.41 552,020.95 19,664,005.31
1210 - 1250 Fixed Assets 61,783,027.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,450,722.52
1270 - Accumulated Depreciation -18,397,846.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -18,397,846.75
1310 - Accounts Receivable 410,528.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 410,528.96
1320 - Due From Other Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,652,631.00 0.00 4,652,631.00
1340 - Suspense -64,351.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -64,351.23
1360 - Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,033,810.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,033,810.00
Total Asset: 58,626,786.04 59,749.16 17,502.92 -7,794.01 28,197.93 10,806,141.41 552,020.95 70,082,604.40
Total Asset: 58,626,786.04 59,749.16 17,502.92 -7,794.01 28,197.93 10,806,141.41 552,020.95 70,082,604.40
Liability
Liability
2004 - Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,247.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,247.00
2006 - Accounts Payable 271,979.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 271,979.01
2054 - Due to Other Funds 4,652,631.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37,999.81 4,690,630.81
2056 - Other Liab-Class Clearing Acct -46,772.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -46,772.75
2058 - Net Pension Liability 3,483,557.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,483,557.00
2006 - 2099 - Other Current Liabilities 2,538,407.76 0.00 50.35 0.00 298.04 0.00 0.00 548,322.59
Total Liability: 10,932,049.02 0.00 50.35 0.00 298.04 0.00 37,999.81 10,970,397.22
Total Liability: 10,932,049.02 0.00 50.35 0.00 298.04 0.00 37,999.81 10,970,397.22
Equity
Equity
3010 - Fund Balance - Nonspendable 35,555,915.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,555,915.76
3020 - Fund Balance - Restricted 2,500,000.00 69,957.46 12,779.69 0.00 38,447.94 10,806,141.41 509,271.14 13,936,597.64
3050 - Fund Balance - Unassigned 11,072,732.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,072,732.80
Total Equity: 49,128,648.56 69,957.46 12,779.69 0.00 38,447.94 10,806,141.41 509,271.14 60,565,246.20
**¥*¥*NOT ASSIGNED TO GROUP***
3030 - Fund Balance - Committed 0.00 0.00 11,297.96 510.82 1,650.93 0.00 0.00 13,459.71
Total ***NOT ASSIGNED TO GROUP***: 0.00 0.00 11,297.96 510.82 1,650.93 0.00 0.00 13,459.71
Total Total Beginning Equity: 49,128,648.56 69,957.46 24,077.65 510.82 40,098.87 10,806,141.41 509,271.14 60,578,705.91
Total Revenue 660,097.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,750.00 664,847.64
Total Expense 2,094,009.18 10,208.30 6,625.08 8,304.83 12,198.98 0.00 0.00 2,131,346.37
Revenues Over/Under Expenses -1,433,911.54 -10,208.30 -6,625.08 -8,304.83 -12,198.98 0.00 4,750.00 -1,466,498.73
Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 47,694,737.02 59,749.16 17,452.57 -7,794.01 27,899.89 10,806,141.41 514,021.14 59,112,207.18
Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 58,626,786.04 59,749.16 17,502.92 -7,794.01 28,197.93 10,806,141.41 552,020.95 70,082,604.40

8/22/2025 3:05:43 PM Page 9



Cash Accounts
Current to Prior Year

Current Year Balance Prior Year Balance
As of 7/31/2025 As of 7/31/2024
Petty Cash 800.00 Petty Cash 800.00
US Bank - County Treasurer 4,985,309.88 US Bank - County Treasurer 3,712,874.86
Golden Valley Bank - Operations 859,415.30 Golden Valley Bank - Operations 6,156,823.75
California CLASS 2,790,148.12 California CLASS 2,663,728.13
GVB Investment 10,049,454.20 GVB Investment 7,329,783.73
TCB Investment 1,185,294.68 TCB Investment 896,087.59
TOTAL 19,870,422.18 TOTAL 20,760,098.06

Page 10



Staff Report FI-25-023
Finance Agenda Item D
Regular Agenda Item 3.3

CARD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 28, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

SUBJECT: Consideration of Service Agreement for Marketing and Social Media Support Services
BACKGROUND

The District has and continues to experience significant growth in programs, facilities, and community
engagement over recent years. This expansion necessitates a strategic restructuring of our marketing and
social media efforts to better serve our diverse program areas, events and maximize community outreach
effectiveness to build public awareness. Based on the volume of program, activities, and event content day-
to-day the information is not effectively reaching much of the targeted public.

DISCUSSION

CARD currently manages all marketing and social media activities through a single organizational account
and limited internal staff resources. As the District has expanded to encompass diverse program areas
including aquatics, youth programs, adult programs, nature center operations, sports facilities, and special
events, our marketing needs have become increasingly complex and specialized.

The current approach presents several challenges:
e Diluted messaging across disparate program areas
e Limited capacity for timely, targeted content creation
< Difficulty reaching specific demographic groups effectively
« Insufficient expertise in emerging digital marketing trends
e Competing priorities that limit marketing consistency and quality

Through capital campaign efforts, consultants and staff recommend transitioning from our current single-
handle social media approach to a specialized, multi-platform strategy in order to reach specific audiences.

Each specialized channel would maintain consistent CARD branding while delivering targeted content that
resonates with specific user demographics and interests. A contracted service would ensure professional
coordination across all platforms while maintaining unified messaging and brand standards.

To support District goals, staff recommend entering into a service agreement with Blue Flamingo to provide
social media management and marketing support in partnership with the District’s internal marketing team.

Contracted marketing services provide access to specialized knowledge including:
e Current social media algorithms and best practices
e Graphic design and multimedia content creation
e Analytics and performance measurement
e Crisis communications management
e Emerging platform adoption and strategy

1|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



FINANCE STAFF REPORT

Professional marketing services typically achieve:
e Higher engagement rates through targeted content
e Improved Search Engine Optimization (SEO) and online visibility
e Coordinated multi-platform campaigns
e Data-driven strategy optimization
e Consistent posting schedules and quality standards

Contracted services offer operational advantages:
e Ability to scale efforts up or down based on seasonal needs
e Access to diverse skill sets without individual hiring
e Rapid adaptation to platform changes and new technologies
e Professional crisis management and reputation protection

The scope of services will include, but is not limited to:

e Collaborating with District staff to align social media and marketing campaigns with internal
communication strategies.

e Management of District social media channels, including content creation, posting, and
community engagement.

e Development of marketing campaigns to support District programs, events, and initiatives.

e Graphic design and branded materials for both print and digital use.

e Performance analytics and reporting to measure the effectiveness of outreach efforts.

This collaborative approach will ensure that external professional support complements existing District
efforts, enhances consistency across platforms, and maximizes community engagement.

FISCAL IMPACT
Estimated Annual Cost of Additional Staff:

» Marketing Specialist (1.0 FTE): $65,000 - $75,000

« Social Media Specialist (1.0 FTE): $65,000 - $75,000

e Benefits (health, dental, vision @ 35%): $55,000 - $60,000

» Workers' compensation and other costs: $8,000 - $10,000
Total Annual Staff Cost: $185,000 - $220,000

Contracted marketing services cost:
Not to exceed $90,000 annually, funded through the District's marketing and communications budget. In
addition, this approach does not add to the District's pension liability.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the District Manager to enter into a service agreement with Blue Flamingo for marketing,
communications, and social media support services in an amount not to exceed $90,000 annually.

2|Page



CARD

You're the Heart of Chico — Let's Make
Sure Everyone Feels It.




Annabel,

To further our recent discussion , we would like to outline a process for CARD to achieve the goals
you have set for yourselves and the community you serve.

When we last met, you mentioned:

The staffing strain of managing rapid organizational growth

Limited bandwidth to maintain consistent social engagement

The need for a unified marketing strategy across departments and platforms

You also expressed the desire for a streamlined content process that reinforces
CARD’s brand voice and a stronger connection between your programming and the
people of Chico.

Our plan details out the process to overcome your challenges and achieve your goals.

We discussed several challenges that require attention. This implementation plan relates to most
immediate of these projects:

e Social media management and engagement
e Strategic communications planning
e Promotion of signature events and community activations

Here's to play,

Valerie Reddemann
President
Blue Flamingo Marketing

© Blue Flamingo Marketing |



Where you are now

Social Media Presence - FB, Insta, Linkedin +

Youtube:

@)

@)

@)

@)

@)

Current social media under one umbrella -
recognize the challenges of a one-size-fits-all
approach

Linkedin: 711

FB: 8400 Page Likes

Insta: 4887

Youtube: 44 subscribers

CARD is multifaceted

@)

Community database outreach via weekly newsletter

Robust year round program schedule spanning
age, ability + interests

17 parks

6 community centers

1 pool

Chico Creek Nature Center

Beyond Golf - under construction

Aquatic Center - under construction

Bike Park - under construction

New city assets rolling under CARD over next 12

mos

Special Events: 4th of July parade, Gala, etc.

© Blue Flamingo Marketing | 3



What'’s Next

Step 1: Strategy - Create a unified voice when you have
many different ears.

With many audiences come many voices — but CARD needs
one clear message.

e Ensures every interaction feels intentional, human, and
on-mission

e Turns communication into meaningful community
connection

e Amplifies CARD’s impact across every park, program,
and platform

Step 2: Grow your community with engagement and
consistency.

A thriving community doesn't just attend — it belongs.
e C(Create separate social channels to target appropriate
audience to:

o Grow the reach, grow the impact
More families discovering programs
More voices engaged and represented

o Stronger connections to CARD’s mission

o 90 day plan and sprints

Step 3: Educate to empower. Know your audience, meet
their needs — and make it feel personal.

Segment your lists/channels and tailor every message
People support what they clearly understand

Clear, consistent messaging earns trust

Proactive communication prevents confusion
Protects CARD's reputation before it's ever at risk

© Blue Flamingo Marketing |



Where You Want To Be

e Full attendance for all programs + events

e Increase engagement on public outlets

e Put a communication strategy in place that aligns
to new and continued growth

e (Categorize and optimize current community
members through email + text messaging

e Easyto understand and less time from staff on
answering questions

e Increase general community awareness of CARD

How To Measure Success

e Creation of Marketing Playbook to follow

e Quarterly Engagement rate increase

e Redefined Content output - schedule, segment,
etc.

e Diversify channels

e Net new CARD subscribers

What It Means To You

e You've laid the groundwork to continue to grow
with impact and grace

e Your leading the pack on inclusion in the region

e Your team feels supported in their continued
growth within the organization

e The community puts CARD at the top of
organizations run right

© Blue Flamingo Marketing |



Approach

To deliver the proposed value to you, here are three potential options you could take.

GOOD

Strategy planning +
action plan

Social Media
Management (2
platforms: Insta + FB
platforms)

Email Marketing (1x
per month)

Monthly reporting
with key metrics,
insights, and
recommendations
2x year check-in with
staff

BETTER

Strategy planning + action
plan

Social Media Management
(3 platforms)

Email Marketing (weekly)
List segmentation,
targeting, and
management

Ongoing sentiment
analysis

Written monthly feedback
loops: what's working,
what's not, what's being
said

Monthly reporting with
key metrics, insights, and
recommendations

4x year check-in with staff

BEST

Strategy planning +
action plan

Social Media
Management (3
platforms)

Email Marketing
(weekly)

List segmentation,
targeting, and
management

Text Messaging
Quarterly Video
Graphic Design
special projects
Ongoing sentiment
analysis

In person monthly
feedback loops:
what's working,
what's not, what's
being said

Monthly reporting
with key metrics,
insights, and
recommendations
Monthly staff
check-in- we are
working side by side



Investment:

Onboarding

One Time Cost

$6,500

Included

Please Select Your Preferred Approach

Good $5,356/month
Better $7,579/month
Best $10,550/month

Monthly Cost $7,579/ month

© Blue Flamingo Marketing |




W,

A Strategic Partner for CARD’s Growth & Impact

Blue Flamingo Marketing helps CARD unify its voice, streamline communications, and
strengthen community connection as it grows. With a clear strategy and creative
execution, we turn complexity into clarity—amplifying impact while easing internal strain.

Benefits to CARD:

e Unified Brand Voice: Ensures every CARD message feels intentional, human, and
aligned with its mission — no matter the platform.

e Increased Engagement: Engaging content tailored to specific audiences will grow
CARD's reach, deepen public connection, and encourage greater participation.

e Efficient Staff Support: Streamlined systems and communications reduce
repetitive staff tasks and allow focus on higher-impact work.

e Reputation Protection: Proactive, clear messaging builds trust, prevents
confusion, and strengthens CARD’s presence as a community leader.

e Measurable Growth: Through consistent metrics (engagement rates, subscriber
growth, and optimized content), CARD can track success and pivot with
confidence.

Services Provided:

(Summary of “Better” on page 8)

e Strategy: Marketing playbook, project timelines, and quarterly strategy reviews.

e  Comprehensive content calendars, copywriting, asset creation, and publishing.

e  Custom KPI dashboards, quarterly performance reports, and engagement
benchmarking.

e Social Media: Strategic communications, community connection, and managed
campaigns.

e Email Marketing + list segmentation - message clarity, audience connection, and
increased program participation.

By working with Blue Flamingo, CARD positions itself not only to manage growth, but to
thrive — with communications that reflect its heart, mission, and community impact.

Investment: $7,579/month

© Blue Flamingo Marketing |



Thank
You

(530) 210-2391
353 E 2nd Street, Ste. 220
Chico, California 95928

blueflamingomarketing.com



Staff Report FI-25-024
Finance Agenda Item E
Regular Agenda Item 3.4

C-A-RD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chico Area Recreation & Park District

Finance Committee

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 28, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Annabel Grimm, General Manager

SUBJECT: Award of Contract for District Irrigation Replacement Project
BACKGROUND

The District maintains irrigation systems across the parks and facilities to support healthy turf,
landscaping, and recreational spaces. Existing control systems have reached the end of their
useful life, resulting in inefficiencies, water waste, and increased maintenance costs. These
antiquated systems create a lack of efficient management and continuity in turf management.

In 2023, the District irrigation system standards moved to modern smart irrigation controllers
that offer significant advantages for public parks, transforming how the District manages water
resources and maintain green spaces.

Smart controllers use weather data, soil moisture sensors, and evapotranspiration rates to
optimize watering schedules automatically. This prevents overwatering during rainy periods and
adjusts for seasonal changes, typically reducing water consumption by 20-50% compared to
traditional timer-based systems.

Phase | of the irrigation upgrade project was completed in FY 24/25 with approximate water
savings of 880,000 gallons compared to pre-project water use.

DISCUSSION
In June of 2025, staff issued a public bid for Phase Il and Ill of the irrigation modernization
project which included:
e Removal and disposal of remaining outdated irrigation components.
e Installation of new valves, backflow preventers, and controllers as necessary.
» Incorporation of water-efficient tools, including smart controllers and flow sensors.
e Testing and commissioning of the new systems.

A bid walk was held on July 10, 2025. Bids due on July 31, 2025. Two bids were received. The
lowest qualified bidder was Dawson Landscaping at $554,850 followed by Marina Landscaping
at $656,552. Staff further reviewed submissions for compliance with all specifications.

1|Page
545 Vallombrosa Avenue, Chico, CA 95926 | Phone (530) 895-4711



	ADPA2AB.tmp
	Finance Committee
	STAFF REPORT

	FI-25-022b July 2025 Board Financial Report.pdf
	01- General Fund Budget to Actuals - July 2025
	02 - Program Revenue & Expense - July 2025
	03 - Assessment District Revenue & Expense - July 2025
	04 - Impact Fee Activity
	05 and 06 - Balance Fund and Cash Report July 2025
	07 - Fund Balance Report - July 2025
	08 - Cash Accounts - PriorYear Comparison - July 2025
	Sheet1


	ADPF023.tmp
	Finance Committee
	STAFF REPORT
	Budget Analysis
	Revenue: July revenue came in a bit short of target largely because taxes represent nearly half the budget and we did not collect any tax revenue in July.  This is typical for this month.
	 Operating Income: Operating income came in right above target at 8.89%
	Expenses: Expenses reported at 14.08% of budget largely driven by supplies & services including some large equipment purchases for the year along with repairs & maintenance being elevated due to the time of year.
	 Salaries & Wages reported just under budget at 7.43%.
	 Supplies & Services reported a bit above budget at 26.07% as explained.
	 Employee Benefits are over budget at 26.84% due to a front-loaded payment to Workers’ Compensation which happens in July each year.  This will level out over the course of the year.
	 Repairs & Maintenance ended the month at 12.70% which is common this time of year largely due to landscape and irrigation wear and tear in the summer months.


	FI-25-024 Award of Contract for District Irrigation Replacement Project.pdf
	Finance Committee
	STAFF REPORT

	ADPCDE1.tmp
	STAFF REPORT

	ADPB6E4.tmp
	STAFF REPORT




